DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

Contents

Company Information 2
Mission Statement 3
Notice of Annual General Meeting 4
Directors' Report 7
Chairman's Review 11
Key Operating and Financial Data 12
Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies

(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 13
Independent Auditor's Modified Review Report to the Members of

Dewan Automotive Engineering Limited 16
Independent Auditor's Report 18
Statement of Financial Position 23
Statement of Profit or Loss 24
Statement of Comprehensive Income 25
Statement of Cash Flows 26
Statement of Changes in Equity 27
Notes to the Financial Statements 28
Pattern of Shareholding 62
Form of Proxy 65
Form of Proxy (Urdu) 66
Directors' Report (Urdu) 67
Notice of Annual General Meeting (Urdu) 72

Y ANNUAL REPORT 2019 |




ii%’sYD ’ A YOUSUF DEWAN COMPANY

Company Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
COMPANY SECRETARY

AUDIT COMMITTEE

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

AUDITORS

LEGAL ADVISORS

SHARE REGISTRAR / TRANSFER AGENT

BANKERS

REGISTERED OFFICE

FACTORY

WEBSITE

02| ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Executive Director

Mr. Waseem-ul-Haque Ansari  Chief Executive Officer
Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Haroon Igbal Chairman Board of Directors

Mr. Muhammad Naeemuddin Malik
Syed Magbool Ali

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ali

Mr. Ishtiaq Ahmed

Independent Director

Mr. Azizul Haque

Mr. Muhammad Naeemuddin Malik

Mr. Muhammad Naeemuddin Malik

Mr. Azizul Haque Chairman
M:r. Ishtiaq Ahmed Member
Syed Magbool Ali Member
Mr. Azizul Haque Chairman
Mr. Haroon Igbal Member
Syed Magbool Ali Member

Farug Ali & Company

Chartered Accountants

C-88, ground floor, KDA Scheme No. 1
Main Karsaz road,

Opposite maritime museum Karachi.

A. K Brohi

BMF Consultants Pakistan (pvt) Ltd.

Anum Estate Building, Room No. 310 & 311,
3rd Floor, 49, Darul Aman Society,

Main Shahrah-e-Faisal,

Adjacent to Baloch Colony Bridge,

Karachi, Pakistan

Bank Islami Pakistan Ltd.
Dewan Centre, 3-A Lalazar
Beach Luxury Hotel Road

Karachi.

Dewan City Sajawal District Thatta, Sindh.

www.yousufdewan.com




DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

Mission Statement

To be the No. 1 automobile company in Pakistan

@ To assume leadership role in the technological advancement of the industry and to achieve
the highest level of quantitative indigenization.

g To offer high value, economical and qualitative solutions to address the commuting needs

of a diverse range of customers.

@ To seek long-term and good relations with our suppliers and dealers with fair, honest and
mutually profitable dealings.

@ To be a totally customer oriented company and to achieve Total Customer Satisfaction.

o To create a work environment, which motivates recognizes and rewards achievements at all

levels of the organization.
@ To produce environment friendly vehicles.

@ To be a contributing corporate citizen for the betterment of society, and to exhibit a socially

responsible behavior.

Y ANNUAL REPORT 2019 03




%\%’sYD ’ A YOUSUF DEWAN COMPANY

Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Thirty Seventh Annual General Meeting of Dewan Automotive
Engineering Limited ("DAEL" or "the Company") will be held on Thursday, October 24,
2019, at 03:00 p.m. at Dewan Cement Limited Factory Site, at Deh Dhando, Dhabeji, District
Malir, Karachi, Pakistan; to transact the following businesses upon recitation from Holy Qur'aan
and other religious recitals:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To confirm the minutes of the preceding Annual General Meeting of the Company held on

Thursday, October 25, 2018;

2. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the annual audited financial statements of the Company
for the year ended June 30, 2019, together with the Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon;

3. To confirm the appointment of the Statutory Auditors' of the Company for the year ended June
30, 2020, and to fix their remuneration;

4. To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board

Muhammad Naegmuddin Malik
Company Secretary
Karachi: September 27, 2019

NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed for the period from October 17,
2019 to October 24, 2019 (both days inclusive).

2. Members are requested to immediately notify change in their addresses, if any, at our Shares
Registrar Transfer Agent BMF Consultants Pakistan (Private) Limited, located at Anum Estate
Building, Room No. 310 & 311, 3rd Floor, 49, Darul Aman Society, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal,
adjacent to Baloch Colony Bridge, Karachi, Pakistan.

3. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, may appoint another
member as his/her proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her. Proxies, in order to be effective,
must be received by the Company at the abovesaid address, not less than 48 hours before the
meeting.

4. CDC Account holders will further have to observe the following guidelines, as laid down in

Circular 01 dated January 20, 2000, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan:
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a) For Attending Meeting:

i) In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder, and/or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations,
shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original National Identity Card (CNIC),
or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

i) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney, along with
the specimen signature of the nominee, shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier)
at the time of meeting.

b) For Appointing Proxies:

i) In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder, and/or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations,
shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirements.

i) Two persons, whose names, addresses, and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form,
shall witness the proxy.

iii) Attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and proxy shall be furnished
along with the proxy form.

iv)] The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney, along with
the specimen signature of the nominee, shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier)
along with the proxy form to the Company.

5. Notice to Shareholders who have not provided CNIC:

CNIC of the shareholders is mandatory in terms of directive of the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan contained in S.R.O. 831(1)/2012 dated July 05, 2012 for the issuance
of future dividend warrants etc. and in the absence of such information, payment of dividend
may be withheld in term of SECP's above mentioned directive. Therefore, the shareholders who
have not yet provided their CNICs are once again advised to provide the attested copies of
their CNICs directly to our Shares Registrar without any further delay.

6. Mandate for E-DIVIDENDS for shareholders:

In order to make process of payment of cash dividend more efficient, e-dividend mechanism
has been envisaged where shareholders can get amount of dividend credited into their respective
bank accounts electronically without any delay. In this way, dividends may be instantly credited
to respective bank accounts and there are no changes of dividend warrants getting lost in the
post, undelivered or delivered to the wrong address, efc. The Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP) through Notice No. 8(4) SM/CDC 2008 dated April 5, 2013 had advised
all Lised Companies to adopt e-dividend mechanism due to the benefits it entails for shareholders.
In view of the above, you are hereby encouraged to provide a dividend mandate in favor of
e-dividend by providing dividend mandate form duly filled in and signed.
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7. Electronic Transmission of Financial Statements Eic.:

SECP through its notification No. SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014 has allowed
companies to circulate Annual Audited Financial Statements along with Notice of Annual
General Meeting through email instead of sending the same through post, to those members
who desires to avail this facility. The members who desire to opt to receive aforesaid statements
and notice of AGM through e-mail are requested to provide their written consent on the Standard
Request Form available on the Company's website:http: //www.yousufdewan.com/DAEL/index.html|
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DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

Directors’ Report

IF YE GIVE THANKS, | WILL GIVE YOU MORE (HOLY QURAN)

The Board of Directors of Dewan Automotive Engineering Ltd. is pleased to present its annual report
along with the Company's audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 and
welcomes you to the thirty-seventh Annual General Meeting.

Financial Overview

The summary of financial performance for the year, along with the comparative figures of financial
year 2018 is as follows:

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
(Restated)

(Rupees in '000)

Gross Sales 7,313 22,109
Gross (loss) 6,250 (19,835)
Operating (loss) (57,586) (29,995)
Net (loss) after tax (84,046) (47,828)

Year under review:

During the year under review, the company could not continue the operations and had to close
down due to closure of the Company to which sales were being made, in addition due to non-
availability of banking lines, the production activity of the Company during the year remained
suspended, resulting in unabsorbed overhead cost which ultimately contributed to the financial loss
of the Company. The company is operating under tough conditions due to the aforesaid reason and
making best endeavors to survive. To overcome the current financial situation, the Company is taking
various countermeasures and has taken up the matter with the banks.

Once working capital is available then the company can exploit its full potential.

The Auditors have qualified the report due to significance of the matter as referred in Para (a) and
(b) of the Auditors Report. The Management has explained the status of the matter in respective
Note No. 3 & 29.1 of the financial statements.

Corporate and financial reporting framework:

e  The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019, prepared by the management of
the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flow and changes

in equity;
e  Proper books of accounts of the company have been maintained;
e  Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial

statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 and accounting estimates are based on reasonable
and prudent judgment.
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e International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed
in preparation of financial statements;

e  The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored;

e The Management has explained their views in detail regarding the going concern ability of
the company in note 3 of the annexed financial statements.

e There has been no material departure from the best practice of the corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations of the stock exchange of Pakistan;

e  Summarized key operating and financial data of the last six years is enclosed with the report;

e All taxes have been paid and nothing is outstanding, except as disclosed in note 18 of the
annexed audited financial statements;

The Board Comprises of one independent director, one executive and five non-executive Directors.
The following are the names of Directors.

Mr. Haroon Igbal

Mr. Waseem-ul-Haque Ansari

Mr. Muhammad Naeemuddin Malik
Syed Magbool Al

M:r. Ishtiaq Ahmed

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Al
Mr. Aziz-ul-Haque

During the year no casual vacancy was occurred on the Board of Directors

Principal Activities of the Company

Dewan Automotive Engineering Limited is incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited Company
and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company's principal activity is
manufactures, assembles, trades, and sells tractors, light commercial vehicles, and motorcycles
primarily in Pakistan. It also trades in and manufactures related parts and implements.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Company consider the following as key risks:

e Depreciation of Pak Rupee against US Dollar;
e Non-availability of working capital.

The Company is endeavoring internally as well as externally to cater with and mitigate the impact
of aforesaid risks and uncertainties.
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DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company conducts its business in a responsible manner looking after its stakeholders and the
environment. The Company mainly focus providing on the job training to fresh hired work force
enabling them to develop adequate skills. While employing work force, the Company encourage
under-privileged people residing close to the plant, thereby increasing their standard of living.
Moreover, health and safety of employees is another area of focus. The Company complies with
all applicable rules and regulations in the manufacturing process to ensure environmental protection.
Standard Operating Procedures have been laid down to ensure protecting the health and safety
of employees. The Company is also involved in providing medical facilities to people residing in
the surrounding area.

The Board of Directors comprise of individuals with diversified knowledge who endeavor to contribute
toward the aim of the Company with the best of their abilities. During the year four meetings of the
Board of Directors was held. The attendance of directors was as follows;

Names of Directors No of meetings attended

Mr. Haroon Igbal

Mr. Waseem-ul-Haque Ansari

Mr. Muhammad Naeemuddin Malik
Syed Magbool Ali

M:r. Ishtiaq Ahmed

Mr. Muhammad Irfan Al

Mr. Aziz-ul-Haque

ANMNwWMNMNOWAN

The audit committee comprise of three directors, all of them are non-executive. During the year four
meetings of audit committee was held.

Name of Director No. of meetings attended
Mr. Aziz-ul-Haque 4
Mr. Ishtiaq Ahmed 4
Syed Magbool Ali 4

During the year one meeting of the human resource & remuneration committee was held, members'
attendance in this meeting is as under.

Name of Director No. of meetings attended
Mr. Aziz ul Haque 1
Mr. Haroon Igbal 1
Syed Magbool Ali 1
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Auditors:

The present Auditors Messrs Farug Ali & Co, Charfered Accountants, have retired and offer themselves
for re-appointment.

The Board of Director on recommendation of the Audit committee has recommended the re-appointment
of Messrs Farug Ali & Co. Chartered Accountants.

Loss per share

The Loss per share is Rs. 3.93

Dividend

Due fo loss for the year as well as accumulated losses, no dividend has been recommended by the
Board.

Pattern of Shareholding:
The pattern of Shareholding of the Company as at June 30, 2019 is included in the Annual Report.
Trading in Company Shares

None of the Directors, Executives, their spouses and minor children have traded in the shares of
the Company during the year.

Vote of Thanks:

On behalf of the Board, | thank you, the valued shareholders, Federal and Provincial Government
and their functionaries, banks, development financial institutions, leasing companies, dealers, vendors
and customers for their continued support and patronage.

The Board would also like to appreciate the valuable services, loyalty and efforts rendered by the
executives, staff members and workers of the Company, during the year under review.

Conclusion:

In conclusion, we bow, beg and pray to Almighty Allah, Rehman-o-Rahim, in the name of his beloved
Prophet, Muhammad, peace be upon him, for continued showering of His blessing, guidance,
strength, health and prosperity to us, our Company, country and nation and also pray to Almighty
Allah to bestow peace, harmony, brotherhood and unity in true Islamic spirit to whole of Muslim
Ummah, Ameen, Summa Ameen.

LO-MY LORD IS INDEED HEARER OF PRAYER (HOLY QURAN)

4

Haroon Igbal
Chairman Board of Directors
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DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

Chairman's Review

| am pleased to present a report on the overall performance of the Board of Directors and effectiveness
of the role played by the board in achieving the company's objectives. The board of directors is
responsible for the management of the company, which formulates all significant policies and
strategies. The board is governed by relevant laws & regulations and its obligation, rights,
responsibilities and duties are as specified and prescribed therein.

The Board of Directors comprises of individuals with diversified knowledge who endeavour to
contribute towards the aim of the Company with the best of their abilities.

An annual self-evaluation of the Board of Directors of the Company is carried out. The purpose of
this evaluation is to ensure that the Board's overall performance and effectiveness is measured and
benchmarked against expectations in the context of objectives set for the Company.

During financial year ended June 30, 2019, four board meetings were held. The Board of Directors
of the Company received agendas and supporting material in sufficient time prior to the board and

its committee meetings. All the Directors are equally involved in important decisions. the Board's
overall performance and effectiveness for the year under review was satisfactory.

Chairman

September 27, 2019

Y ANNUAL REPORT 2019 | 11




12 | ANNUAL REPORT 2019

YD ’ A YOUSUF DEWAN COMPANY

Summarised Key Operating and Financial Data

of Last Six Years

PARTICULARS 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
R Fpurpag | D, Fpurpg |
Gross Sales 7,313 22,109 47,922
Net Sales 6,251 18,896 40,797
Gross (Loss) / Profit (29,518) (19,835) (33,742) (29,690) (32,114) (19,142)
Operating (loss)/profit (57,58¢) (29,995) (77,986) (53,607) (63,181) (62,567)
(los) / profit before tax (86,519) (50,707) (44,863) (67,681) (117,024) (108,903)
(los) / profit after tax (84,046) (47,828) (42,615) (64,807) (113,790) (105,264)
Retained Earnings 178,184 178,184 178,184 178,184 656,994 387,663
Share Capital 214,000 214,000 214,000 214,000 214,000 214,000
Shareholders Equity (1,216,913) (1,147,434) (1,102,390) (1,149,977) (1,072,573)  (1,234,680)
Fixed Assets 259,767 265,695 288,005 312,748 340,011 370,313
Total Assets 274,903 306,989 326,621 387,105 974,725 761,488
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Gross (loss)/profit Margin -472.21% -104.65% -46.92%
Operating (loss) /profit Margin 921.22% -155.70% -153.36%
(loss)/profit before tax -1384.08% 265.31% 266.93%
(loss) / profit after tax -1344.52% -253.94% -258.01%
Return on Investment
(Loss) / Earnings per share before tax (Rs/Share) (4.04) (2.34) (2.09) (3.16) (5.47) (5.08)
(Loss) / Earnings per share after tax (Rs/Share) (3.93) (2.24) (1.99) (3.03) (5.31) (4.91)
Activity Ratios
Sales to Total Assefs-Times 2.27 0.06 0.05
Sales to Fixed Assets-Times 0.02 0.07 0.1
Liquidity Ratios
Current ratio (excluding current maturity of LTL) 0.008 0.03 0.02 0.05 0.34 0.21
Current ratio (Including current maturity of LTL) 0.008 0.03 0.02 0.05 0.34 0.21
Book value per share (Rs.) (56.86) (54.35) (51.51) (53.73) (50.12) (57.69)




DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:

a. Male: 7
b. Female: The requirement to have Female representation in the Company's board
will be complied upon reconstitution of the Board.

2. The composition of board is as follows:
a) Independent Director Mr. Aziz-ul-Haque

b) Other Non-executive Directors Mr. Haroon Igbal
M:r. Ishtiaq Ahmed
Mr. Muhammad Naeemuddin Malik
Syed Magbool Al
Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ali

c) Executive Directors Mr. Waseem-ul-Haque Ansari

3. Six Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as director on more than five listed
companies, including this company, whereas, one director is serving as director in more than
five listed Yousuf Dewan Companies.

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decision on relevant matters have
been taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the board for this purpose. The board has compiled with requirements of
Act and the regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting

of board.

8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.
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9. Three of the Directors are qualified under the directors training program. We will arrange
Director Training Program in the coming session.

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations.

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.
12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee Mr. Aziz-ul-Haque - Chairman
Mr. Ishtiaq Ahmed - Member
Syed Magbool Ali - Member

b) HR and Remuneration Committee Mr. Azizul Haque - Chairman
Mr. Haroon Igbal -Member
Syed Magbool Ali- Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee 4 quarterly meetings during the financial year

ended June 30, 2019

b) HR and Remuneration Committee 1 annual meeting held during the financial year
ended June 30, 2019

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function. The staffs are considered suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures
of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight
Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children
do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with

International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard.
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DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Haroon Iqbal Waseem-ul-Haq Ansari
Chairman Board of Directors Chief Executive

Karachi: September 27, 2019
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C-88, Ground Floor, KDA Scheme No. 1, Telephone : (021) 34301966

Main Karsaz Road, Opp. Maritime : (021) 34301967

FARUQ ALI & CO  Museum, Karachi-75350 1 (021) 34301968

& co. E-mail: info@fac.com.pk : (021) 34301969
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Fax - (021) 34301965

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S MODIFIED
REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

Review Report to the Members on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors
of Dewan Automotive Engineering Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2019
in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries
of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply
with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies
Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's
process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were
undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Following instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Code were observed which are

not stated in the Statement of Compliance:

a) The composition of board includes Mr. Aziz ul Hag, as independent director, whereas in our view
he does not meet the criteria of independence on account of his cross directorship in associated
companies;

16 | ANNUAL REPORT 2019




DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

Continuation Sheet

b) b) The chairman of the Audit Committee shall be an independent director, whereas in our view Mr.
Aziz ul Haq does not meet the criteria of independence due to the reason referred in paragraph
(a) above; and

c) The chairman of the HR and Remuneration Committee shall be an independent director, whereas
in our view Mr. Aziz ul Haq does not meet the criteria of independence due to the reason referred
in paragraph (a) above.

Based on our review, except for the above instances of non-compliance, nothing has come to our
attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect
the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Further, we highlight that one of the directors of the Company is serving as director in more than
five listed companies as disclosed in the note 3 of the Statement of Compliance.
Furthermore, we highlight that only three of the directors are qualified under the directors training
program as disclosed in note 9 of the Statement of Compliance.

Dated: September 27, 2019 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Karachi Engagement partner: Muhammad Faisal Nini
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Dewan Automotive Engineering Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Adverse Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Dewan Automotive Engineering Limited ('the
Company'), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, ont?’rhe statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, incc1uding a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained
ol?the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for
the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, because
of the significance of matters discussed in basis for adverse opinion paragraph, the statement of financial
position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof do not conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and do not give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively do not give a
true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2019 and of the loss and other
comprehensive loss, the changes in equity onJi’rs cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan ('the Code') and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our adverse opinion.

a) The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2019 reflect loss after taxation
of Rs.84.046 million and as of that date it has accumulated losses of Rs. 1,688.580 million which
resulted in net capital deficiency of Rs. 1,216.913 million and its current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by Rs.1,301.292 million and total assets by Rs. 1,037.325 million. The operations
of the Company are closed. The Company is placed on defaulters' counter of Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited and trading of its shares was suspended. Furthermore, the Company is in litigation with its
lender. These conc?itions lead us to believe that the going concern assumption used in preparation
of these financial statements is inappropriate; consequently, the assets and liabilities should have
been stated at their realizable and settlement amounts respectively.
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b) b) The Company has not made provision of markup for the year amounting to Rs.1.650 million (Up
to 30 June 2019: Rs.15.987 miﬁion) (refer note 28.1) on account of restructuring proposal offered
to a lender as described in note 3 and 29.1 o the financial statements. Had the provision of markup
been made in the financial statements, the loss after taxation would have been higher by Rs.1.650

ion.

Key Audit Matter(s)

Following are the key audit matters:

million and markup payable would have been higher and shareholders' equity would have been
lower by Rs.15.987 miﬁ

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

S. No.

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

First time adoption of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

As referred to in note 4.3.1 to the financial
statements, the Company has adopted IFRS
9 with effect from | July 2018. The new
standard requires the Company to make
provision for financial assets (trade debts)
using Expected Credit LosséE L) approach
as against the Incurred Loss Model
previously applied by the Company.

Determination of ECL provision for trade
debts requires si?nificont judgement and
assumptions including consideration of
factors such as historical credit loss
experience and forward-looking macro-
economic information.

We have considered the first time
application of IFRS 9 requirements as a
key audit matter due to significance of the
change in accounting methodology and
involvement of estimates and judgments in
this regard.

Our key procedures to review the
application of IFRS 9 included, amongst
others, review of the methodology
developed and applied by the Company
to estimate the EpCPL in relation to trade
debts. We also considered and evaluated
the assumptions used in applying the ECL
methodology based on historical information
and qualitative factors as relevant for such
estimates.

Further, we assessed the integrity and quality
of the data used for ECL computation based
on the accounting records and information
system of the Company as well as the
related external sources as used for this
purpose.

We checked the mathematical accuracy of
the ECL model by performing recalculation
on test basis.

In addition to above, we assessed the
adequacy of disclosures in the
unconsolidated financial statements of the
Company regarding application of IFRS 9
as per the requirements of the above
standard.
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Information Other Than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
in the annual report including, in particular, the Chairman's Review, Director's Report, Financial and
Business Highlights, Graphical Representation and Horizontal and Vertical Analysis of Financial Statements,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required fo report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our obijectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

o  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
a) Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);
b)  The statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon
have not been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) however, the

same are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's business; and

d) No Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Muhammad Faisal

Nini.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Place: Karachi
Dated: September 27, 2019
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As on 30 June 2019

Note 2019 2018 2017
(Restated)  (Restated)
ASSETS o —— (Rupees in '000) ----=-====-=---
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 6 259,767 265,695 288,005

Available for sale investment 7 4,200 2,320 7,120

Long term deposits - Interest free - 3,020 3,020

263,967 271,035 298,145
CURRENT ASSETS

Stock in trade 8 2,025 3,111 -

Trade debts 9 - - -

Advances, prepayment and other receivable 10 5,077 26,281 26,067

Advance income tax - Net 3,423 3,430 2,277

Cash and bank balances 11 411 3,132 132

10,936 35,954 28,476
274,903 306,989 326,621
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised share capital
21,800,000 (2018: 21,800,000)

Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 218,000 218,000 218,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 12 214,000 214,000 214,000
Capital reserve
Merger reserve 82,090 82,090 82,090
Settlement claim from Ford Motors 13 86,194 86,194 86,194
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 14 79,483 71,168 75,656
Revenue reserves
General reserve 9,900 9,900 9,900
Accumulated losses (1,688,580) (1,610,786) (1,570,230)

(1,216,913) (1,147,434)  (1,102,390)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term loans - Unsecured 15 147,049 129,875 113,726

Deferred liability for staff gratuity 16 1,544 1,238 2,897

Deferred taxation 17 30,995 29,987 33,452

179,588 161,100 150,075
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 18 366,085 365,481 362,635

Short term finance 19 155,152 154,879 154,879

Accrued mark-up 20 779,741 761,713 750,172

Overdue portion of loans - Secured 21 11,250 11,250 11,250

1,312,228 1,293,323 1,278,936
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 22 - - -
274,903 306,989 326,621

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Haroon Igbal
Chairman

Waseemﬁ:e Ansari
Chief Executive Officer

Muhammad NaeemAUddin Malik
Chief Financial Officer
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Note 2019 2018
Restated

Sales - Net 23 6,251 18,896
Cost of sales 24 (35,769) (38,731)
Gross loss (29,518) (19,835)

Operating expenses

Distribution expenses 25 (480) (450)
Administrative expenses 26 (8,560) (4,910)
Other expenses 27 (19,028) (4,800)
(28,068) (10,160)

Operating loss (57,58¢) (29,995)
Other income 28 1,917 48
Finance cost 29 (30,850) (20,760)
Loss before taxation (86,519 (50,707)
Taxation - Net 30 2,473 2,879
Loss for the year (84,046) (47,828)
Loss per share - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 31 (3.93) (2.23)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Haro%;bul Waseem-(ul{aque Ansari Muhammad Naeem/@in Malik

Chairman Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For The Year Ended June 30, 2019

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year:
Surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment

Related deferred tax

Effect of change in tax rates on balance

of revaluation on property, plant and equipment
ltems that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarial gain on remeasurement of post employment benefit plans

Tax effect

Total comprehensive loss for the year

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

5 4

-
Haroon Igbal Waseem-ul-Haque Ansari
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Note 2019 2018
Restated

(84,046) (47,828)
18,009 -
(4,526) -
13,483 -
1,000 1,080
16.1.6 (118) (2,434)
34 730
(84) (1,704)
(69,647) (48,452)

Muhammad Naeem/dlin Malik

Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended June 30, 2019

2019 2018
---------- (Rs. in '000)----------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation (86,519) (50,707)
Adjustment for non cash charges and other items
Depreciation 24,019 22,494
Sales tax receivable and security deposit write off 19,028
Impairment on investment in associate - 4,800
Unwinding of discount / present value adjustment - Net 12,804 9,190
Reversal of impairment on investment in associate (1,880) -
Provision for gratuity 424 775
Finance cost 30,850 20,760
Cash (outflows) / inflows before working capital changes (1,274) 7,312
Working capital changes
(increase)/decrease in current assets
Stock in trade 1,086 (3,111)
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 5,196 (214)
Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 604 2,847
6,886 (478)
Net cash generated from operations 5,612 6,834
Payments for:
Finance cost (12,822) (2,219)
Income tax (72) (1,390)
Net cash outflows from operating activities (7,282) (3,775)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditures (82) (276)
Sale proceed of disposal of fixed assets - 92
Net cash outflows from investing activities (82) (184)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term loan from director 4,370 6,959
Net movement in short term finance 273 -
Net cash inflows from financing activities 4,643 6,959
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,721) 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,132 132
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 411 3,132

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Haro%:bal Wuseem-(ul{cmue Ansari Muhammad Naeem/diin Malik

Chairman Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Statement Of Changes In Equity

For The Year Ended June 30, 2019

Balance as on 1 July 2017 - As reported

Prior year adjustments of staff gratuity
Balance as on 1 July 2017 - As restated

Loss for the year - Restated
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Incremental depreciation transfer from surplus on

revaluation of property, plant and equipment - Net of fax
Balance as at 30 June 2018 - Restated

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Incremental depreciation transfer from surplus on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment - Net of fox
Balance as at 30 June 2019

Capital reserves Revenue reserves

Issued,
subscribed Settlement | Surplus on
and paid-up | Merger | claim from | revaluation of | Capital | General | Accumulated| Revenue Total
share reserve | Ford Motors |property, plant| reserve | reserve losses | reserves
capital (Note 13) |and equipment
-------------------------- (Rupees in '000) =-=-==-=eresmmmemananannns
214000 82090 86,19 75656 243940 9,900 (1,584,053 (1,574,153 (1,116,213]

- - - - 13,823 13,823 13,823

214,000 82,090

86,194 75,656 243,940 9,900 (1,570,230 (1,560,330) (1,102,390)

- - SR8 47828 (47,828
- 1080 1080 - 1704 1704 2784

- 1080 1,080 [6,124)  (46,124) (45,044

- 5,568 [5,568) 5,568 5,568 -

214,000 82,090

86,194 71,168 239,452 9,900 (1,610,786) (1,600,886) (1,147,434)

- - - - [84046) (84046  (84,046)

- - - 14483 14,483 - 84 84 14567
- - - 14483 14,483 - 83962 (83962 (69,479
- - - 6,168 (6,168 - 6168 6,168 -

214,000 82,090

86,194 79,483 247,767 9,900 (1,688,580) (1,678,680) (1,216,913)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

£

il

=
Haroon Igbal Waseem-ul-Haque Ansari Muhammad Naeem Uddin Malik
Chairman Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended June 30, 2019

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Dewan Automotive Engineering Limited is a public Limited Company quoted on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited (trading in defaulter counter). The Company's business is the assembly-cum
progressive manufacture and sale of tractors, light commercial vehicles and motorcycles and
trading / manufacturing of parts and implements related thereto. The Company was incorporated
on May 6, 1982 and commenced commercial operations in August, 1983. The Company was
taken over by Yousuf Dewan Company in April 2004.

During the year 2017, the Company received notices from Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
(PSX) in respect of non-compliance o?/clcuse 5.11.1. (c) and 5.11.1.(e) of the PSX Regulations
therefore it was placed on defaulter’s counter of PSX and trading of its shares was suspended.
The Company has rectified the default and has requested for removal of Company from defaulter’s
counter. Hence no action by the Exchange under clause 5.11.1. (c) and 5.11.1.(e) is warranted
under the said circumstances.

The geographical location and address of Company's business units including plant is as under:

Compﬁny's registered office is located at Dewan Centre, 3-A Lalazar, Beach Hotel Road,
Karachi.

Company's production plant is situated at Sajawal and Shershah Karachi, Sindh, Pakistan.

2 SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY'’S
FINANCIAL POSITION AND PERFORMANCE

The financial position and performance of the Company was affected by the following events
and transactions during the year:

The revaluation of property, plant and equipment was carried out during the year. The
revaluation resulted in a surplus amounting to Rs.18.009 million which was incorporated
in the books of the Company as at 30 June 2019.

Other significant transactions and events have been adequately disclosed in these financial
statements. For detailed performance review of the Company, refer Directors’ report.

3 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

The company incurred a net loss of Rs.84.046 million (2018: Rs.47.828 million) during the
year ended 30 June 2019 and, as of that date it has accumulated losses of Rs.1,688.580
million (2018: Rs.1,610.786 million) which have resulted in net capital deficiency of Rs.1,216.913
million (2018: Rs.1,147.434 million) and its current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
Rs.1,301.292 million (2018: Rs.1,257.369 million) and total assets by Rs.1,037,325 million
(2018: Rs.986.334 million). The Company has been unable to ensure scheduled repayments
of borrowings and to the creditors due to the liquidity problems. Following course, certain
lenders has gone into litigation for repayment of liabilities through attachment and sale of the
Company's ypothecoteg / mortgaged properties. These conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern. therefore the Company may not be able to realize its assets and discharge
its liabilities in normal course of business.
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The Company has restructured its entire debts except one and also been paid as per term of
restructuring agreements. The management is also confident that the outcome of the pending
litigation will be positive as the Company is negotiating re-profiling of the debt with the lender.
Therefore, the management is confident that the proposal will be accepted by the lender and
pending litigations will be withdrawn. Accordingly, these financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

4 BASIS OF PREPARATION
4.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan with the exception of departure of IFRS
as mentioned in note 29.1 to the financial statements, for which the management
concludes that provisioning of mark-up would conflict with the objectives of the financial
stfctements. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise
of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; an

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from
the IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have
been followed.
4.2 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except the obligation in respect of gratuity fund which is measured at present value and

items of property, plant and equipment which are carried at revalued amounts.

4.3 New standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and
new interpretations

4.3.1 Adoption of standards and amendments effective during the year

The Company has adopted the following accounting standards, the amendments and
interpretations of IFRSs which became effective during the current year:

IFRS 2 Share based Payments: Classification and Measurement of Share Based
Payments Transactions (Amendments)

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts (Amendments)

IFRS @  Financial Instruments
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments)

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
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The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvements to accounting
standards did not have any material effect on the financial statements except for IFRS

9 and IFRS 15. The impact of adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 is given below:
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related
Interpretations and it applies to all revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless
those contracts are in the scope of other standards. The new standard establishes a five-
step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement, taking info consideration all of the
relevant facts and circumstances when app?yin each step of the model to contracts
with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs
of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.

The Company elected the modified retrospective method and applied the standard
refrospectively to only the most current period presented in the financial statements.
Accordingly, the information presented for the previous corresponding period has not
been restated.

The Company generates its revenue from sale of goods. The Company’s contracts with
customers for the sale of goods generally incluge one performance obligation. The
Company has concluded tﬁot revenue from sale of goods should be recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the goods. Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 did not have an impact on the timing
of revenue recognition and the amount of revenue recognised.

In general the contracts for the sale of goods do not provide customers with a right of
return and volume rebates. Accordingly, the application of the constraint on variable
consideration did not have any impact on the revenue recognised by the Company.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement bringing together aspects of the accounting for financial instruments:
classification and measurement and impairment.

Classification and measurement

Except for certain trade receivables, under IFRS 9, the Company initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs.

Under IFRS 9, debt financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), amortised cost, or fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). The classification is based on two criteria: the Company’s business model for
managing the assets; and whether the instruments’ contractual cash flows represent
‘solely payments of principal and interest’ on the principal amount outstanding (the ‘SPPI
criterion’).
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At transition date to IFRS 9, the Company has financial assets measured at amortised
cost and equity instruments at FVOCI. The new classification and measurement of the
Company'’s financial assets are, as follows:

Debt instruments at amortised cost for financial assets that are held within a business
model with the objective to hold the financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows that meet the SPPI criterion.

Equity instruments at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or loss on
derecognition. This category only includes equity instruments, which the Company
intends to hold for the foreseeable future and which the Company has irrevocably
elected to so classify upon initial recognition or transition. The Company classified its
unquoted equity instruments as equity instruments at FVOCI. Equity instruments at FVOCI
are not subject to an impairment assessment under IFRS 9. Under IAS 39, the Company’s
unquoted equity instruments were classified as AFS financial assets.

The accounting for the Company’s financial liabilities remains largely the same as it
was under IAS 39. Accordingly, the adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect
on the Company’s accounting policies related to financial liabilities.

Impairment

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Company’s accounting for
impairment losses for financial assets by replacing IAS 39s incurred loss approach with
a forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS 9 requires the Company
to record an allowance for ECLs for all loans and other debt financial assets not held

at FVPL.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shorffall
is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate.

For trade and other receivables, the Company has applied the standard’s simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. The Company
has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Company. The adoption of the ECL requirements
of IFRS 9 did not result in any difference in the existing impairment allowances of the
Company’s debt financial assets.
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4.3.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved
accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates
mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation:

Standard or interpretation Effective date (annual periods
beginning on or after)

IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendments 1Jan-20

IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Previously held interests in a

joint operation 1Jan-19

IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

(Amendments) 1Jan-19

[FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and 1AS 28

Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture (Amendment) "Not yet finalised"

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Previously held interests in a

joint operation 1Jan-19
IFRS 16 Leases 1Jan-19
IAS 1/ IAS 8 Definition of Material (Amendments) 1Jan-20
IAS 12 Income Taxes: Income tax consequences of

payments on financial instruments classified as equity 1Jan-19
IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

(Amendments) 1Jan-19
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for

capitalization 1Jan-19
IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
(Amendments) 1Jan-19
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1Jan-19

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact
on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application. The Company
is currently evaluating the impact of these standards.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting
standards have also been issued by the IASB in December 2017. Such improvements
are generally effective for annual reporting period beginning on or after 01 January
2019. The Company expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any
material impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.

The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
ghe Conceptual Framework) in March 2018 which is effective for annual periods

eginning on or after 01 January 2020 for preparers of financial statements who
develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any standard
or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist
IASB in developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies
if there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and
interpret the standards.
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Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be
notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

IASB Effective date (annual

Standard periods beginning on or after)
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1Jan-16
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1Jan-21

The Company expects that above new standards will not have any material impact on
the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.

4.4 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are
presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

4.5 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and
in any future periods affected.

InJ)orticular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting f)olicies that have the most significant affect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

4.5.1 Operating fixed assets, revaluation and depreciation

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful lives and
residual values used in the calculation of depreciation. The estimates of revalued amounts
of revalued assets are based on valuations carried out by a professional valuer. Further,
where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assets is made for possible
impairment on an annual basis. In making these estimates, the Company uses the
technical resources available with the Company. Any change in the estimates in the
future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment,
with corresponding effects on the depreciation charge and impairment.

4.5.2 Income tax
In making the estimates for income tax curren’? payable by the Company, the management

considers the current income tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on
certain issues in the past.
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4.5.3 Stock in trade

The Company reviews the net realizable value (NRV) of stock in trade to assess any
diminution in the respective carrying values. Any change in the estimates in future years
might affect the carrying amounts of stock in trade and corresponding effect in profit
and loss account of those future years. Net realisable value is determined with respect
to estimated selling price less estimated expenditures to make the sales.

4.5.4 Staff retirement benefits

Certain actuarial assumptions have been used as disclosed in these financial statements
(note 16) for the actuarial valuation of unfunded gratuity scheme. Changes in these
assumptions in future years may effect the liability under this scheme in those years.

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Except as described below in note 5.1, the significant accounting policies are consistently
applied in the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those applied in earlier
period presented.

5.1 Changes in significant accounting policies

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and IFRS
9 ‘Financial Tnstruments' from O1 July 2018 which are effective from annual periods
beginning on or affer 01 July 2018 and for reporting period / year ending on or after
30 June 2019 respectively.

The details of new significant accounting policies adopted and the nature and effect
of the changes to previous accounting policies are set out below:

5.1.1 IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

On 28 May 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) issued
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) 15 “Revenue From Contracts with
Customers” which provides a unified five-step model for determining the timing,
measurement and recognition of revenue. The focus of the new standard is to recognize
revenue as performance obligations are made rather than based on the transfer of risk
and rewards. IFRS 15 includes a comprehensive set of disclosure requirements includin

ualitative and quantitative information about contracts with customers to understan
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue. The standard supersedes IAS
18 “Revenue”, IAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the number of revenue related
interpretations.

The Company has applied the modified retrospective method upon adoption of IFRS
15 as allowed under the Standard. This method requires the recognition of the cumulative
effect (without practical expedients) of initially applying IFRS 15 to retained earnings.
Under this transition method, comparative information for prior periods has not been
restated and continues to be reported in accordance with the previous standard under
IAS 18 and related interpretations.

Apart from providing more extensive disclosures, the application of IFRS 15 has not
had a significant impact on the financial position and / or financial performance of the
Company for the reasons described below. Accordingly there was no adjustment to
retained earnings on application of IFRS 15 at 1 July 2018.
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Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods
or services. Determining the timing of the transfer of control — at a point in time or over
time — requires judgement. Control of the underlying goods could be transferred and
revenue recognizeg when the product leaves the seﬁer's location, based on legal title
transfer, the entity’s right to receive payment, or the customer’s ability to redirect and
sell the goods, but there might be additional performance obligations for shipping and
in-transit risk of loss. The Company allocates the transaction price to each of the
performance obligations, and recognize revenue when each performance obligation
is satisfied, which might be at different times.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer,
net of sales commission and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company manufactures and contracts with customers for the sale of exercise books
and prolables, which generally include single performance obligation. The management
has concluded that revenue from sale of goods be recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer, which is when the goods are dispatched
to the customer. Invoices are generated and revenue is recognised at that point in time,
as the control has been transferred to the customers. Invoices are usually payable within
30 days. No discounts, sales commission and return are offered. The above is generally
consistent with the timing and amounts of revenue the Company recognised in accordance
with the previous standard, IAS 18. Therefore, the adoption of IFRS 15 which replaced
IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations, did not
have an impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognition of the Company.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of transaction
prices for the time value of money. As required for the financial statements, the Company
disaggregated revenue recognised from contracts with customers into primary geographical
markets and major product lines.

5.1.2 IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

IFRS 9 replaced the provisions of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’ that relates to the recognition, classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of
financial assets and hedge accounting. Changes in accounting policies resulting from
adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively. The details of new significant
accounting policies adopted and the nature and effect of the changes to previous
accounting policies are set out below:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories

for financial assets of held to maturity, loans and receivables, held for trading and
available for sale. IFRS 9, classifies financial assets in the following three categories:

Y ANNUAL REPORT 2019 |35




YD ’ A YOUSUF DEWAN COMPANY

Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended June 30, 2019

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
- Measured at amortized cost.

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that existed at the date of initial application:

- The determination of business model within which a financial asset is held; and

- The designation and revocation of previous designation of certain financial assets
as measured.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions
and is not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

- itis held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates o cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

- It is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash.

- lts contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement
of profit or loss account or other comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Company has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

All financial assets are not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as
described above are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

The adoption of IFRS 9 did not have a significant effect on the Company’s accounting
policies related to financial liabilities.

The accounting policies that apply to financial instruments are stated in note 5.10 to
the financial statements.
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The following table explains the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the

new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Company’s financial
assets as at 30 June 2018:

As at 30 Original New Original New carrying
June 2018 classification classification carrying amount
under IAS 39 under IFRS 9 amount
------- (Rupees in '000) -------
Available for sale investment  Loans and receivables Amortized cost 2,320 2,320
Long term deposits Loans and receivables Amortized cost 3,020 3,020
Advances, prepayment and
other receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost 26,281 26,281
Advance income tax - Net Loans and receivables Amortized cost 3,430 3,430
Cash and bank balances Loans and receivables Amortized cost 3,132 3,132
Total financial assets 38,183 38,183
Impairment

IFRS @ replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model.
IFRS @ introduces a forward looking expected credit loss model, rather than the current incurred
loss model, when assessing the impairment of financial asset in the scope of IFRS 9. The new
impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost, contract assets and
debt investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach for measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade debts. Impairment losses related to
trade debts are presented separately in the statement of profit or loss account. Trade debts are
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Management used actual credit
loss experience over past years to base the calculation of ECL on adoption of IFRS 9. Given
the Company’s experience of collection history and historical loss rates / bad debts and normal
receivable aging, the move from an incurred loss model to an expected loss model has not had
an impact on the financial position and / or financial performance of the Company.

Loss allowance on debt securities are measured at 12 months expected credit losses as those
are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. Since there is no loss given default,
no credit loss is expected on these securities. Loss allowance on other securities and bank
balances is also measured at 12 months expected credit losses. Since these assets are short
term in nature, therefore no credit loss is expected on these balances.

5.2 Property, plant and equipment
Owned
ltem of property, plant and equipment is recognized as asset when it is probable that future

economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the company and its cost to the company
can be measured reliably.
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An item of property, plant and equipment, which qualifies for recognition as an asset,
is initially measured at its cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the item. Subsequent to initial recognition items of property, plant and
equipment are carried at a revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using the fair
value at the balance sheet date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as “Revaluation
surplus on property, plant and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which
case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously
charged. Any decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of assets is charged
to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation
surplus on property, plant and equipment relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
The revaluation reserve is not cvoilzble for distribution to the Company's shareholders.
The surplus on revalued assets to the extent of incremental depreciation charged (net
of deferred tax) is transferred to unappropriated profit.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the
financial year in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost / revalued amounts less accumulated
depreciation except for the leasehold land which is stated at revalued amount. Depreciation
is charged to income applying the reducing balance method over estimated useful life
of the assets. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the asset is put into
use while on disposals upto the month the asset was in use. Depreciation is being
charged at the rates given in note 6.1. Incremental depreciation on account of revaluation
charged for the year on revalued assets is transferred from surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment to accumulated loss.

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at each balance sheet date.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major
renewal and improvements are capitalized. Gain or loss, if any, on disposal of property,
plant and equipment is included in income currently.

Leased

The company accounts for assets acquired under finance lease bTI recording the assets
and related liability. Assets are recorded at lower of present value of minimum lease

payments under the lease agreements and fair value of the assets. The aggregate

amounts of obligation relating to these assets are accounted for at net present value of

liabilities. Assets acquired under the finance leases are depreciated over the useful life

of the respective asset in the manner and at the rates applicable to the company’s owned

assets. Financial charges are allocated to accounting periods in a manner so as to
ging liabilities.

provide a constant periodic rate of change on outstan
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5.3 Intangible
An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and that the cost of such asset

can also be measured reliably.

Software under development are carried at cost. Direct cost include the purchase cost
and directly aftributable cost of preparing the asset for its infended use.

Intangible asset is amortized from the date such asset is put into use on straight line
basis over its useful life.

5.4 Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that
a tangible fixed asset may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts
of such assets are reviewed to assess whether ’rhec}/ are recorded in excess of their
recoverable amount. Where carrying value exceeds recoverable amount, assets are
written down to the recoverable amount.

5.5 Deferred costs

These are amortized on a straight line basis over a period of ten years, starting from
the year in which company has commenced the commercial operations.

5.6 Stores, spares and stock in trade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost is determined as
follows:

Stores and spares  Average cost

Stock in trade:

Raw material Average cost
Goods in transit Cost comprising invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon.
Work in process Prime cost plus appropriate portion of manufacturing overheads.
Finished goods Average cost

Net realizable value signifies the estimated se||in? price in ordinary course of business
less cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

5.7 Trade and other receivables
Trade debts originated by the company are recognized and carried at original invoice
amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts, if ong. An estimate for doubitful
debts is made when collection of amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are written
off when they are no longer recoverable.

Other receivables are recognized and carried at cost.
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5.8 Investments

Investments classified as available for sale are initially measured at cost, being the fair
value of consideration given. At subsequent reporting dates, these investments are re-
measured at fair values (quoted market price), unless fair value cannot be reliably
measured, in such case the investments are measured at cost. Gains and losses on re-
measurement to fair value are recognized directly in equity through the statement of

changes in equity.

5.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at banks are carried at cost. For the purpose of the cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks.

5.10 Financial Instruments

5.10.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

- Measured at amortised cost.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments at FYOCI

Equity Investments at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVTPL
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These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest / mark-up income calculated using the effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in tﬁe statement of profit or
loss account. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income. On de-recognition,
gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss
account.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognised as income in the statement of
profit or loss account unless the dividend clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss account.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Net gains and losses, including any interest / mark-up
or dividend income, are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss account.
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Financial assets measured at

amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The amortised
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / mark-
up income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss account.

5.10.2 Non-derivative financial assets

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on
which the Company becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-
derivative financial assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with
fixed or deferminable payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes trade
debts, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalent. The Company
derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expires or it fransfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets
are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.

5.10.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables

These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they
are originated and measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These
assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation
of expected credit loss.

5.10.2.2Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flow, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, balances with banks and investments with
maturities of less than three months or less from acquisition date that are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in fair value and short term borrowings
availed by the Company, which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Company’s cash management.

5.10.3 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-
up bearing borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the
financial liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.
Financial liability other than at fair value through profit or loss are initially measured
at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent fo initial recognition,
these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method.
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5.10.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost, while the difference between the cost (reduced for periodic
payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss account
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

5.10.3.2 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable
costs, if any, and subsequently measured at amortised costs.

5.10.4 Derivative financial instruments - other than hedging

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement
of financial position at estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of
profit or loss account. Derivative financial instruments are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.

5.10.5 Derivative financial instruments - cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion
of changes in fair value of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in fair value
of derivative is recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss account. The
amount accumulated in equity is removed therefrom and included in the initial carrying
amount of non-financial asset upon recognition of non-financial asset.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation
techniques. These are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

5.10.6 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the financial statements only when the Company has currently
legally enforceable right to setoff the recognised amounts and the Company
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the
liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the
counter parties.
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5.11 Staff retirement benefits

The company operates a defined benefit plan comprising a funded gratuity scheme
covering all permanent employees, under which benefits are paid on cessation of
employment subject to a minimum qualifying period of service. An approved gratuity
fund trust is established for the management of the gratuity obligation of the company.
Annual contributions are made to the fund based on actuarial recommendations. The
actuarial valuations are carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurement
charge which comprises of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets
(excluding interest) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income.

5.12 Deferred income

Deferred income arising out of sale and lease back transactions is amortized over the
period of lease term.

5.13 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are recognized and carried at cost which
is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services
received, whether or not billed to the company.

5.14 Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on current rates of tax after taking into account
tax credits and rebates available, if any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for, using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all
temporary differences arising from the differences between the carrying amount of assets
and liability in the Finoncicﬂ statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the
computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future tax profits will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilized.

5.15 Provisions
A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

5.16 Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rates of exchange ruling at
the date of transaction.

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies, if any, are translated into rupees at the

exchange rates Erevoiling on the balance sheet date except where forward exchange
contracts have been entered into in which case the rates contracted for are used.
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5.17 Related party transactions

All transactions with related parties are based on the policy that all transactions between
the company and the related parties are carried out at arm's length basis.

5.18 Revenue recognition
Sales are recognized as revenue when goods are invoiced to customers.
5.19 Non current assets held for sale

Non current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair value less cost to sell.

5.20 Warranties

Warranty expenses are recognized as and when claims are received.
5.21 Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred,

except to the extent that these are directly aftributable to the construction of qualifying
assets in which case these are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

Note 2019 2018
6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets -

At cost less accumulated depreciation 6.1 259,767 265,695

6.1  Operating fixed assets - At cost / revaluation less accumulated depreciation
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2019
COST / REVALUATION DEPRECIATION Book value
PARTICULARS Aot 1| fdditons | Revelustions | (Deletions) | Aset30 | AsatT | o (On ) | Shargeder | Mme® | 3B3eme |57
2018 year year 2019 2018 2019 2018
(Rupees in ‘000)
Freehold land
Cost 1,202 - - - 1,202 - - - - 1,202 -
Revaluation 1,198 - 2,400 - 3,598 - - - - 3,598 -
Factory building on freehold land
Cost 120,427 - - - 120,427 49,313 - 3,556 52,869 67,558 51010
Revaluation 93,136 - 3,477 - 96,613 39,224 - 2,869 42,093 54,520 5
Plant and machinery
Cost 232,224 - - - 232,224 155915 - 9,780 165,695 66,529 10
Revaluation 91,876 - 12,132 - 104,008 45,830 - 5818 51,648 52,360 10
Computer and allied 3,293 82 - - 3,375 3,149 - 26 3,175 200 101030
Furniture and office equipment 26,106 - - - 26,106 19,823 - 629 20,452 5,654 10
Motor vehicles 63,138 - - - 63,138 59,208 - 786 59,994 3,144 20
Tools and equipment 11,104 - - - 11,104 8,538 - 257 8,795 2,309 10
Refrigerators and air conditioners 1,506 - - - 1,506 1,293 - 21 1,314 192 10
Electrical appliances 318 - - - 318 235 - 8 243 75 10
Jigs and fixtures 735 - - - 735 621 - 1 632 103 10
Electrical fittings 6,494 - - - 6,494 4,585 - 191 4,776 1,718 10
Dies 4,205 - - - 4,205 3,535 - 67 3,602 603 10
Patterns 112 - - - 112 110 - - 110 2 20
TOTAL 657,074 82 18,009 - 675,165 391,379 - 24,019 415,398 259,767
2018
COST / REVALUATION DEPRECIATION
PARTICULARS Asat1 | Additions | (Deletions) | Asat30 | Asat1l (on Charge for | Asat30 | Bookvalue | Rate
Jul during the June Jul disposals) the year June 383:;2 %
2017 year 2018 2017 2018 2018
(Rupees in “000)
Freehold land
Cost 1,202 - - 1,202 - - - - 1,202 -
Revaluation 1,198 - - 1,198 - - - - 1,198 -
Factory building on freehold land
Cost 120,427 - - 120,427 45,570 - 3,743 49,313 71,114 51010
Revaluation 93,136 - - 93,136 36,387 - 2,837 39,224 53912 5
Plant and machinery
Cost 232,224 - - 232,224 147,437 - 8,478 155,915 76,309 10
Revaluation 91,876 - - 91,876 40,714 - 5116 45,830 46,046 10
Computer and allied 3,293 - - 3,293 3,127 - 22 3,149 144 1010 30
Furniture and office equipment 25,830 276 - 26,106 19,126 - 697 19,823 6,283 10
Motor vehicles 64,577 - (1,439) 63,138 59,573 (1,347) 982 59,208 3,930 20
Tools and equipment 11,104 - - 11,104 8,253 - 285 8,538 2,566 10
Refrigerators and air conditioners 1,506 - - 1,506 1,269 - 24 1,293 213 10
Electrical appliances 318 - - 318 226 - 9 235 83 10
Jigs and fixtures 735 - - 735 608 - 13 621 114 10
Electrical fittings 6,494 - - 6,494 4,372 - 213 4,585 1,909 10
Dies 4,205 - - 4,205 3,461 - 74 3,535 670 10
Patterns 112 - - 112 109 - 1 110 2 20
TOTAL 658,237 276 (1,439) 657,074 370,232 (1,347) 22,494 391,379 265,695
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Note 2019 2018
------ (Rs. in '000)------
6.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 24 22,578 21,144
Distribution expenses 25 480 450
Administrative expenses 26 961 900
24,019 22,494

6.3 The revaluation of property, plant and equipment was carried out as of June 2018 by M/s.
Anderson Consulting (private) limited (an independent valuer who is located in Karachi) on
the basis of there professional assessment of prevailing market values. The revaluation resulted
in a surplus amounting to Rs.18.009 million which was incorporated in these financial

statements.
Written down
_ value of assets|  Revalued Revaluation
Particulars before amount surplus

revaluation

Land 2,400 4,800 2,400

Factory building 125,026 128,503 3,477

Plant and machinery 119,968 132,100 12,132
247,394 265,403 18,009

6.4 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the items of property, plant and equipment
would have been as follows:

2019 2018
------ (Rs. in '000)------

Net book value
Freehold land 1,203 1,203
Factory building on freehold land 67,558 71,114
Plant and machinery 66,529 76,310
135,290 148,626

6.5 The forced sale value of the revalued property, plant and equipment owned by the Company
had been assessed at Rs.185.800 million.
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2019 2018

7  AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENT

Investment in associated company
Dewan Mushtaq Trade Limited (Public, unquoted company)

4,000,000 (2018: 4,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 40,000 40,000
Provision for impairment loss (35,800) (37,680)
4,200 2,320

7.1 Since this investment is in unquoted company therefore this is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment because the fair value can not be measured reliably.

7.2 Investments in associated company or undertakings have been made in accordance
with the requirements under the Act.

7.3 Dewan Mushtaq Trade Limited is engaged in import, export, sale and trade in
petrochemicals, paints and other products. The Company has 14.31% interest in
ownership of the investee company. The value of Company's investment on the basis
of net assets of Dewan Mushtaq Trade Limited as disclosed in the un audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 amounted to Rs.4.206 million.

Note 2019 2018

8 STOCKINTRADE . (Rs. in '000)------
Raw materials and components 129,886 130,972
Work in process - 2,701
Finished goods - Manufacturing stock - 3,567
Trading stock 30,263 30,263
160,149 167,503
Provision for slow moving and obsolescence stocks 8.1 (158,124) (164,392)
2,025 3,111

8.1 Provision for slow moving and obsolescence stock

Raw materials Work in Finished goods - Trading Total
Particulars and process manufacturing  stock
components stock
------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ----========s=nsnmnun--

Opening provision 127,861 2,701 3,567 30,263 164,392
Provision for the year - - - - -
Release of provision - (2,701) (3,567) - (6,268)
Closing provision 127,861 - - 30,263 158,124
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2019 2018

9 TRADE DEBTS

Considered good - -
Considered doubtful 944 944

944 944

Provision for doubtful debts (944) (944)

10 ADVANCES, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER RECEIVABLE

Advances - Unsecured, considered good

Employees - 4,874
Other advances 5,077 5,077
Prepaid insurance - 322
Sales tax receivable - 16,008
5,077 26,281

11 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 14 14

Cash at banks:

- Current accounts 397 397

- Saving account 11.1 - 2,721
411 3,132

11.1 Saving account carry mark-up 3.05% million (2018: 3.25% per annum).

12 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2019 2018 2019 2018
----- (Number of shares) ----- -=-===(Rs. in '000)------
20,535,871 20,535,871  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 205,359 205,359

issued as fully paid in cash
864,129 864,129  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
issued as fully paid bonus shares 8,641 8,641

21,400,000 21,400,000 214,000 214,000
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Note 2019 2018
13 CAPITAL RESERVES

Capital reserve on settlement claim from Ford Motors arose due to receipt of settlement claim
from Ford Motors, as per clause 12(a) of the Compensation agreement between the Company

and Ford Motors dated 22 January 1990.

14 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Balance as at 1 July 71,168 75,656
Revaluation during the year 18,009 -
Related deferred tax (4,526) -
Effect of change in tax rates 1,000 1,080
Incremental deprecation charged on related assets
during the year - Net of tax (6,168) (5,568)
79,483 71,168

14.1  The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and
is not available for distribution to the shareholders in accordance with section 241
of the Companies Act, 2017.
15 LONG TERM LOAN - Unsecured

From sponsor - At amortized cost

Loan received - Opening 15.1 314,064 307,105
Received during the year 4,370 6,959
318,434 314,064

Accumulated present value adjustment (255,801) (253,449)
Accumulated interest charged to profit and loss account 84,416 69,260

147,049 129,875

15.1 The above loan is interest free and unsecured. This loan shall be treated as subordinated
to the principal amounts of the long term debt owing to the creditors of the Company
from time to time and to all debts of the Company from time to time owing to the
banks and financial institutions and accordingly may only be repaid by the Company
in whole or in part provided that upon such repayment, the Company shall comply
with the debt to equity ratio requirements of the Prudential Regulations of State Bank
of Pakistan as applicable to the Company for the time being.

Since the loan is interest free and repayable in lump sum on 30 June 2026, as per
the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) it has been
discounted fo its fair value, being the present value of the expected future cash flows
at 11.67% per annum.
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2019 2018
------ (Rs. in '000)------
16 DEFERRED LIABILITY FOR STAFF GRATUITY
Staff gratuity payable 16.1.3 1,544 1,238

16.1 Staff gratuity payable
The Company operates unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent eligible employees.
Gratuity benefit is payable under the scheme to employees on cessation of employment

due to death, retirement and resignation.

The gratuity is payable only after one year of service with the Company based on
the last drawn basic pay and the number of completed years of services.

16.1.1 Number of employees under the scheme 6 6

16.1.2 Principal actuarial assumptions
The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at 30 June 2019 under the Project
Unit Credit Method by Nauman Associates (Consulting actuaries). Principal actuarial
assumptions used in the valuation of the scheme is as follows:

Significant actuarial assumptions

Discount rate used for inferest cost in profit and loss 9% per annum 7.75% per annum
Discount rate used for year end obligation 14.25% per annum 9% per annum
Salary increase used for year end obligation 13.25% per annum 8% per annum
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8 years 8 years
Refirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

Mortality rate is based on adjusted SL1C 20012005 with one year age set back mortality table.

16.1.3  Present value of defined benefit obligations 16.1.4 1,544 1,238

16.1.4 Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

Opening present value of defined benefit obligation 1,238 2,897
Expense charged to the profit and loss account 16.1.5 424 775
Benefits paid - -
Total amount of remeasurements recognised

in other comprehensive income (OClI) 16.1.6 (118) (2,434)
Closing present value of defined benefit obligation 1,544 1,238
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16.1.5

16.1.6

16.1.7

16.1.8

16.1.9

Note

Expense charged to the profit and loss account
Current service cost

Losses arising on plan settlements

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation

Total amount of remeasurements recognised in OCI
Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

Changes in net liability

Net defined benefits liability - Opening

Benefits paid 16.1.4
Expense chargeable to profit and loss account  16.1.5
Remeasurements chargeable in OCI 16.1.6

Net defined benefits liability - Closing
Expense for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 24
Administrative expenses 26
Estimated expenses to be charged to profit and loss

Current service cost
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation

2019

2018

313 297
- 253
111 225
424 775
6 1
(124) (2,435)
(118 (2,434
1,238 2,897
424 775
(118) (2,434)
1,544 1,238
143 261
281 514
424 775

30 June 2020

337
215
552

Y ANNUAL REPORT 2019 |51




E@g YD | A YOUSUF DEWAN COMPANY

Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended June 30, 2019

16.1.10 Sensitivity analysis Note 2019 2018

Sensitivity analysis was carried out on significant actuarial assumptions, such as discount
rate and salary increase rate. The increase / (decrease) in the present value of defined
benefit obligations as a result of change in each assumption is summarized below:

Discount Rate + 100 bps 1,431
Discount Rate - 100 bps 1,670
Salary Increase + 100 bps 1,670
Salary Increase -100 bps 1,429

The sensitivity analysis prepared presented above may not be representative of the actual
change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

17 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax liability arising out of
surplus on revaluation of property plant and equipment 30,995 29,987

17.1The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset amounting to Rs.499.003 million
arising due to available tax losses and credits since it is not probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. The
deferred tax liability reflected in these financial statements relates to the surplus on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment only.

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 293,044 293,736
Accrued expenses 21,300 19,857
Advance from dealers 39,989 39,989
Advance from customers 18.1 4,962 4,962
Withholding tax payable 6,598 5,906
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 145 145
Sales tax payable - 839
Interest on Workers' Profit Participation Fund 47 47

366,085 365,481

18.1 This includes amount of Rs. 5.623 million (2018: Rs. 3.508 million) is received from
Daehan Dewan Motors Co Ltd (associated company).

19 SHORT TERM FINANCE

From related party (associated company) - Unsecured

Interest bearing 19.1 154,879 154,879
Temporary book overdraft 273 -
155,152 154,879

52| ANNUAL REPORT 2019




DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended June 30, 2019

19.1This is an unsecured finance from an associated company, which carries mark-up @
11.64% per annum (2018: @ 7.45% per annum).

2019 2018
20 ACCRUED MARK-UP e (Rs. in '000)------
Associated company 778,418 760,390
Financial institutions 1,323 1,323
779,741 761,713
21 OVER DUE PORTION OF LOAN - Secured
Overdue portion of loan - Secured 11,250 11,250

21.1 The above liability relating to Pak Kuwait Investment Company (Pvi) Limited is an
overdue portion of syndicated loan facilities obtained from financial institutions for
the purpose of setting up of Automotive Air Conditioner Plant. The loans carry mark-
up @ 6 months KIBOR plus 3.77% (2018: @ 6 months KIBOR plus 3.77%). The
loans were repayable in twenty equal quarterly installments of Rs.5.250 million each
commencing from 30 August 2005. The loan is secured by first pari passu charge
by way of equitable mortgage, hypothecation and floating charge on present as well
as future assets of the Company. Pak Kuwait Investment Company (Pvi) Limited has
gone into litigation as more fully explained in note 22.1 to the financial statements.

22 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

22.1 In respect of liability towards a financial institution disclosed in note 21 to the financial
statements, the financial institution has filed suit in Honourable Banking Court of Sindh
at Karachi for recovery of its liabilities through attachment and sale of Company’s
hypothecated / mortgaged properties.

The management has disputed the claim and is strongly contesting the case. The
management has filed counter claims alleging that the bank claim is highly exaggerated
as it has charged mark-up on mark-up and other levies higher than the rate of mark-
up agreed and other charges in violation of State Bank of Pakistan rules and all other
applicable laws of Pakistan.

During the year under consideration, a decree has been passed by the Banking Court
No. V at Karachi, in which the court ordered that the suit is decreed against the
Company to the extent of principle amount of Rs.11.250 million with cost of suit and
cost of funds. Consequently, the financial institution prefers an appeal against the
iudgmen;‘& decree date 21-02-2019, passed by the Learned Banking Court No. V
at Karachi.

Since the Company is in dispute, therefore the estimated financial effect of litigation
is not being disclosed, as it may have adverse affect on the Company’s position in
the suits. Since the case is pending before Honourable Banking Court of Sindh at
Karachi therefore the ultimate outcome cannot be established at this stage.
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23 SALES - Net

Gross sales
Sales tax
Sales net

24 COST OF SALES

Raw materials and parts consumed
Depreciation

Salaries, wages and benefits
Gratuity expense

Traveling and vehicles running
Printing, stationary and office supplies
Generator fuel

Repairs and maintenance
Communication

Cartage and freight

Security expense

Manufacturing cost
Work-in-process - Opening

Release of provision
Work-in-process - Closing

Finished goods - Opening
Release of provision
Finished goods - Closing
Cost of goods manufactured
24.1

Raw materials and parts consumed

Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock
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Note 2019 2018
------ (Rs. in '000)------
7,313 22,109
(1,063) (3,212
6,250 18,897
24.1 3,441 6,458
6.2 22,578 21,144
8,455 9,618
16.1.5 143 261
570 635
217 240
296 138
15 130
54 65
- 29
- 13
35,769 38,731
2,701 2,701
(2,701) -
- (2,701)
35,769 38,731
33,830 33,830
(3,567) -
(30,263) (33,830)
35,769 38,731
130,972 127,861
2,355 9,569
133,327 137,430
(129,886) (130,972)
3,441 6,458




25

26

27

28

DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Depreciation
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits
Depreciation

Auditor's remuneration
Gratuity expense

Traveling and vehicles running
Legal and professional

Fees and subscription
Insurance

Printing, stationary and office supplies
Communication

Rent, rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenance
Security expenses
Miscellaneous

26.1 Auditor's remuneration
Audit of financial statements

Review of half yearly financial statements
Review report on code of corporate governance

OTHER EXPENSES

Impairment on investment in associate
Sales tax receivable and security deposits write off

OTHER INCOME

Reversal of impairment on investment in associate
Interest income on saving account

Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended June 30, 2019

Note 2019 2018
------ (Rs. in '000)------
6.2 480 450
4,685 1,706
6.2 961 900
26.1 500 500
281 514
380 424
150 264
842 272
324 -
145 160
77 62
133 61
15 16
10 -
57 31
8,560 4,910
300 300
150 150
50 50
500 500
- 4,800
19,028 -
19,028 4,800
7 1,880 -
28.1 37 48
1,917 48
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Note 2019 2018

28.1 This profit is earned from bank accounts under mark-up arrangements.

29 FINANCE COST

Mark-up on borrowings from related parties 18,028 11,541
Unwinding of discount / present value adjustment - Net 12,804 9,190
Bank charges 18 29

30,850 20,760

29.1 Company has not made the provision of mark-up for the year amounting to Rs.1.650
million (Up to 30 June 2019: Rs.15.987 million) keeping in view of the financial
restructuring proposed to the lender. Management is hopeful that the restructuring
proposal will be accepted by the lender. Had the provision been made the loss for
the year would have been higher by Rs.1.650 million and accrued mark-up would
have been higher and shareholders' equity would have been lower by Rs.15.987
million. The said non provisioning is departure from the requirements of I1AS-23
'Borrowing Costs".

30 TAXATION - Net

Current tax

Current year 30.1 79 237
Deferred (2,552) (3,116)
(2,473) (2,879)

30.1 Relationship between accounting profit and tax expense for the year
Provision for taxation is based on minimum tax @ 1.25% of the turnover under
section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 therefore there is no relationship

between accounting profit and tax expense for the year.

Change in applicable income tax rate from 30% to 29% is due to change in relevant
Income Tax Laws.

30.2 The income tax assessments of the Company deemed to have been finalized upto
and including Tax year 2018.
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2019 2018

30.3 Management has provided sufficient tax provision in financial statements in accordance
with Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Following is comparison of tax provision as per
accounts vis a vis tax assessment for last three years:

Deemed Provision
assessment

Year 2018 - 237
Year 2017 - 441

Year 2016 - -

2019 2018

31 LOSS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted @ —-eee- (Rs. in '000)------
Loss after taxation attributable to ordinary shareholders (84,046) (47,828)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the year 21,400,000 21,400,000
----------- (Rupees) --==-==----
Loss per share - Basic (3.93) (2.23)

31.1 A diluted loss per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any
convertible instruments in issue as at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018 which would
have any effect on the loss per share if the option to convert is exercised.

32 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

32.1 Chief executive and directors of the Company did not charge any fee or other
remuneration.

32.2 No employee of the Company falls under the definition of "executive" as per the
Companies Act, 2017. Hence no disclosure is given in the financial statements.

33 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties include associated group companies, directors, executives, key management
personnel and staff retirement funds. The transaction with associated companies are in the
normal course of business and have been entered on an arm's length basis. The remuneration
paid to chief executive, directors, executive and key management personnel in terms of their
employment is disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements. Material transactions and
balances with related parties are given below:
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Name of the related party Basis of Percentage of Nature of transactions
relationship shareholding during the year
Dewan Faroog Motors Limited Common director 0.120% Mark up expense
Daehan Dewan Motors Co Lid Common director 0.01% Advance from customer
Sales

34

35
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2019 2018
------- (Rupees '000) -------
18,028 11,541
- 22,911
7,313 22,109
2019 2018

Balances with related parties are shown in long term loan (note 15), advance from customer
(note 18.1), short term finance (note 19) and accrued mark up (note 20) to the financial

statements.
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of employees as at 30 June
Number of factory employees as at 30 June
Average number of employees during the year
Average number of factory employees during the year
PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
Tractors:

Sanctioned plant capacity

Actual production
Motorcycles:

Annual capacity

Actual production

Avuto parts and other related products:

8 8

- 35

10 10

- 33
6,000 6,000
NIL NIL
60,000 60,000
NIL NIL

The Company manufactures various types and sizes of automotive parts to be used in various
types of vehicles including motorcycles. Keeping in view the demand by its customers, the
production capacity for the auto parts and other related products cannot be determined.

The operations of the Company are closed due to working capital constraints.




DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED
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36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
The Company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

The board of directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

36.1 Credit risk
Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting
date if counter parties failed completely to perform as contracted. The company's

credit risk is primary attributable to its receivables and balances with banks.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure fo credit risk at the reporting date is:

Note 2019 2018

Long term deposit - 3,020
Advances 5,077 26,281
Bank balances 397 397

5,474 29,698

36.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects an enterprise's inability in raising funds to meet commitments.
The Company follows an effective cash management and planning policy to ensure
availability of funds and to take appropriate measures for new requirements. The
following are the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities, including estimated
mark-ups:
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Sixto Oneto Two fo
Carrying Contractual  Six months  twelve  two five
amounts  cash flows  orless  months years years

2019 ———————— (Rupees in '000)

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Long term loans 147,049 318,434 - - - 318,434

Trade and other payables 354,525 354,525 354,525 - - -

Accrued mark-up 779,741 779,741 779,741 - - -

Short term finance 155,152 164,240 164,240 - - -

Overdue portion of loans 11,250 12,099 12,099 - - -
1,447,717 1,629,039 1,310,605 - - 318,434

2018

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Long term loans 129,875 314,064 - - - 314,064

Trade and other payables 353,774 353,774 353,774 - - -

Accrued mark-up 761,713 761,713 761,713 - - -

Short term finance 154,879 160,696 160,696 - - -

Overdue portion of loans 11,250 11,763 11,763 - - -
1,411,491 1,602,009 1,287,945 - - 314,064

All the financial liabilities of the comgony are non derivative financial liabilities. The
contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on
the basis of mark-up rates effect as at 30 June.

36.3 Market risk

Market risk is a risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices will affect the Company's income or the value of financial instruments.
The Company's financial instruments are in its functional currency therefore it is not exposed
to currency risk, however the company's exposure to interest rate risk is as follows:

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in market interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in interest rates
relates primarily to the following:

2019 2018

Variable rate instruments at carrying amounts:

Financial liabilities
Overdue portion of loans 11,250 11,250
Short term finance 154,879 154,879
166,129 166,129

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments:
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The company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or
loss.

Cash flows sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments:

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reportin% date would have
increased / decreased loss/profit for the year by the amounts shown below:

2019 2018

Effect on loss / profit due to change of 100 BPs
Increase 1,661 1,661
Decrease (1,661) (1,661)

36.4 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arms length transaction. The carrying
values of financial instruments reflected in these financial statements approximate
their fair values.

36.5 Capital risk management

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safe guard the company's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits to other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

37 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified for the purpose of
comparison and better presentation, however there has been no significant reclassifications
except restatements of prior year adjustments of gratuity amounting to Rs.13.823 millions.

38 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements have been authorized for issue on September 27, 2019 in
accordance with the resolution by the Board of Directors of the Company.

39 GENERAL

These financial statements are presented in Rupees and figures have been rounded off to
the nearest thousand rupees.

Haro%bal Waseem-(l.ll{aql.le Ansari Muhammad Naeem/d:lin Malik

Chairman Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Pattern of Shareholding under Regulation 37(xx)(i) of the Code of Corporate Governance
as at June 30, 2019

. Number of Number of Shares % of
Srd Categories of Shareholders Shareholders held Shareholding
1. Associated Companies 3 4,746,259 22.18%
2. NTandICP 2 56,400 0.26%
3. Directors, CEQ, their Spouses & Minor Children 6 5,000 0.02%
4. Executives - - 0.00%
5. Public Sector Companies & Corporations 14 701,706 3.28%
6. Banks, Development Finance Insfitutions, Non-Banking Finance
Companies, Insurance Companies, Modarbas & Mutual Funds 4 134,133 0.63%
7. Individuals 1,129 15,756,502 73.63%
TOTAL 1,158 21,400,000 100.00%
DETAILS OF CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
Number of Number of Shares % of
Sr# Names Shareholders held Shareholding
1. Associated Companies
1.1 Dewan Motors (Pvt.) Limited | 3 4,746,259 22.18% |
2. NIT and ICP
2.1 National Bank of Pakistan, Trustee Deptt. 1 7,900 0.04%
2.2 Investment Corporation of Pakistan 1 48,500 0.23%
2 56,400 0.26%
3. Directors, CEO, their Spouses & Minor Children
Directors and CEO
3.1 Mr. Haroon Igbal 1 500 0.00%
3.2 Mr. Aziz vl Haque 1 500 0.00%
3.3 Syed Magbool Ali 1 1,000 0.00%
3.4 Mr. Waseem-Ul-Haq Ansari 1 1,000 0.00%
3.5 Mr. Ishtiaq Ahmed 1 1,000 0.00%
3.6 Mr. Muhammad Naeemuddin Malik 1 1,000 0.00%
3.7 Mr. Muhammad Irfan Ali (Nominee Director By DMPL) 0 - 0.00%
6 5,000 0.02%
Spouses of Directors and CEO
3.8 - | 0.00%]
0.00%
Minor Children of Directors and CEO
3.9 - 0.00% |
0.00%
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE OF THE VOTING SHARES/ INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY
St Names umberot | |Number chshares| | | seot
1 Dewan Motors (Pvt.) Limited 3 4,746,259 22.18%
2 Dewan Muhammad Yousuf Frooqui 1 3,702,637 17.30%
3 Dewan Zia-ur-Rehman Farooqui 2 2,368,637 11.07%
4 Dewan Abdullah Ahmed Swaleh Farooqui 1 1,278,637 5.97%
5 Dewan Asim Mushfiq Farooqui 1 1,278,637 5.97%
6  Dewan Abdul Bagi Farooqui 1 1,278,637 5.97%

THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR CHILDREN

DETAILS OF TRADING IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY BY DIRECTORS, CEO, CFO, COMPANY SECRETARY,

During the year under review, none of the CEO, CFO, Directors, Company Secretary, their spouses

and minor children have traded in the shares of the Company.
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1. Incorporation Number

2. Name of the Company

3.  Pattern of holding of the shares
held by the Shareholders as at

DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984
(Section 236(1) and 464)

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

0009414

Form 34

DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

30.06.2019

Total Shares

4. SE:rrgll::I:igts Shareholdings held
397 1 100 Shares 30,558
430 101 500 Shares 119,342
107 501 1,000 Shares 97,878
144 1,001 5,000 Shares 376,683
27 5,001 10,000 Shares 218,532

11 10,001 15,000 Shares 144,000
6 15,001 20,000 Shares 115,499
2 20,001 25,000 Shares 41,700
1 25,001 30,000 Shares 26,000
2 30,001 40,000 Shares 77,000
2 40,001 50,000 Shares 95,003
2 50,001 60,000 Shares 104,333
1 60,001 70,000 Shares 60,500
1 70,001 100,000 Shares 100,000
1 100,001 130,000 Shares 124,500
3 130,001 150,000 Shares 440,500
1 150,001 200,000 Shares 167,449
2 200,001 220,000 Shares 434,320
1 220,001 250,000 Shares 242,500
1 250,001 280,000 Shares 262,815
4 280,001 300,000 Shares 1,146,000
1 300,001 400,000 Shares 348,800
1 400,001 500,000 Shares 409,500
2 500,001 600,000 Shares 1,091,000
2 600,001 700,000 Shares 1,344,944
3 900,001 1,300,000 Shares 3,835,911
1 1,300,001 2,500,000 Shares 2,367,637
1 2,500,001 3,800,000 Shares 3,702,637
1 3,800,001 3,900,000 Shares 3,874,459
1158 TOTAL 21,400,000
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E@ﬁgf%YD A YOUSUF DEWAN COMPANY

THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984 Form 34
(Section 236(1) and 464)
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
5 Categories of Shareholders | Shares held | Percentage |
5.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, their spouses and minor children 5,000 0.02%
5.2 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 4,746,259 22.18%
53 NITandICP 56,400 0.26%
5.4 Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Companies 60,500 0.28%
5.5  Insurance Companies 73,633 0.34%
5.6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 0.00%
5.7 Shareholders holding 5% 14,653,444 68.47%
5.8 General Public
a. Local 15,754,637 73.62%
b. Foreign 1,865 0.01%
5.9 Others (Joint Stock Companies, Brokrage Houses, Employees Funds & Trustees) 701,706 3.28%
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DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED

Form of Proxy

[/ We
of being ____
a member(s) of Dewan Automotive Engineering Limited and holder of
Ordinary Shares as per Registered Folio No. / CDC Participant's ID and Account No.

hereby appoint

of

or falling him

of

who is also member of Dewan Automotive Engineering Limited vide Registered Folio No. / CDC
Participant's ID and Account No. as my/our proxy fo vote for me/us
and

on my/our behalf at the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday,
October 24, 2019 at 03:00 p.m. and my adjournment thereof.

AFFIX

Signed this day of 2019. REVENUE
STAMP
RS. 5/-

Signature
Witness: Witness:
Signature Signature
Name: Name:
Address: Address:

IMPORTANT:
1. A proxy should also be a member of the company.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote all meeting, may appoint another member as his/her proxy fo attend and vote
instead of him/her.

3. Proxies, In order to be effective, must be received by the Company, duly completed, at our Shares Regisrar Transfer Agent BMF Consultants
Pakistan (Private) Limited, located at Anum Estate Building, Room # 301 & 311, 3rd Floor, 49, Darul Anum Society, Main Shahrah-e-
Faisal, Adjacent to Baloch Colony Bridge, Karachi, Pakistan, not later than 48 hours before the meeting.

4. Further Instructions for CDC Account holders:

i) In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder, and/or the person whose securities are in group account and their
registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall the proxy form as per the above requirements.

ii) Two perons, whose names, addresses, and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form, shall witness the proxy.
iii) Attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and proxy shall be furnished alongwith the proxy form.
iv) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original at the time of meeting.

v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney, alongwith the specimen signature of the nominee,
shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) alongwith the proxy form to the Company.
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DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED
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DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED
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DEWAN AUTOMOTIVE ENGINEERING LIMITED
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Key features:

6@ Licensed Entities Verification

e Scam meter®

o Jamapunji games®

B Tax credit calculator®

& Company Verification

B Insurance & Investment Checklist
»? FAQs Answered

rY Jama
LA Puniji

| IF i Y T . o I P

Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapunji.pk

4l Stock trading simulator
(based on live feed from KSE)

Knowledge center
H Risk profiler*
By Financial calculator

m Subscription to Alerts (event
notifications, corporate and
regulatory actions)

@ Jamapunii application for
maobile device

J Online Quizzes

v

n
Jamapunil.pk Sjamapunii_pk

*lobds spps aen alaa arvadahio for dewniaad for arcmid and ios devicos



